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 1                BEFORE THE ARIZONA POWER PLANT
 2            AND TRANSMISSION LINE SITING COMMITTEE
 3   IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF     ) DOCKET NO.
     ARIZONA PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY IN       ) L-00000D-02-
 4   CONFORMANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF    ) 0120
     ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES SECTION 40-360,)
 5   ET SEQ., FOR A CERTIFICATE OF           ) DOCKET NO.
     ENVIRONMENTAL COMPATIBILITY             ) L-00000D-06-
 6   AUTHORIZING THE NORTH VALLEY 230KV      ) 0635-00131
     FACILITY PROJECT, CASE NO. 120 INCLUDING)
 7   THE CONSTRUCTION OF APPROXIMATELY 31    )
     MILES OF 230KV TRANSMISSION LINES, TWO  )
 8   230KV SUBSTATIONS, AND THREE SUBSTATION ) APPLICATION TO
     INTERCONNECTIONS IN MARICOPA COUNTY,    )     AMEND
 9   ARIZONA, ORIGINATING AT THE WESTWING    )  DECISION NO.
     SUBSTATION IN SECTION 12, TOWNSHIP 4    )     65997
10   NORTH, RANGE 1 WEST, G&SRB&M AND        )      AND
     INTERCONNECTING AT THE RACEWAY          )  DECISION NO.
11   SUBSTATION IN SECTIONS 4 AND 5, TOWNSHIP)     63943
     5 NORTH, RANGE 1 EAST, G&SRB&M,         )
12   CONTINUING TO THE PROPOSED AVERY        )
     SUBSTATION IN SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 5    )
13   NORTH, RANGE 2 EAST, G&SRB&M AND THE    )
     PROPOSED MISTY WILLOW SUBSTATION IN     )
14   SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 3    )
     EAST, G&SRB&M, AND TERMINATING AT THE   )
15   PINNACLE PEAK SUBSTATION IN SECTION 10, )
     TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, RANGE 4 EAST, G&SRB&M.)
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17   ________________________________________) CONFERENCE
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24
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 1             BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and
 2   numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the
 3   Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting
 4   Committee, via videoconference, in Phoenix, Arizona,
 5   commencing at 2:10 p.m. on the 19th of July, 2021.
 6
 7   BEFORE:   THOMAS K. CHENAL, Chairman
 8
 9
     APPEARANCES:
10
     For the Applicant:
11
          SNELL & WILMER, L.L.P.
12        By Mr. Matt Derstine
          One Arizona Center
13        400 East Van Buren, Suite 1900
          Phoenix, Arizona 85004
14
          and
15
          PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
16        Law Department
          By Ms. Linda Benally
17        400 North Fifth Street
          Phoenix, Arizona 85004
18
19   ALSO PRESENT:
20        Mr. Jason Spitzkoff, Manager, Engineering T&D, APS
          Mr. Kevin Duncan, Senior Siting Consultant, APS
21        Ms. Anna Chaulk, State Regulatory Analyst, APS
          Ms. Aileen De Los Angeles, Paralegal, APS
22        Mr. Mark Turner, Environmental Consultant, AECOM
          Mr. Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Chenal
23
24
25
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  Let's begin and let's have
 2   appearances, please, at this time.
 3            MR. DERSTINE:  Matthew Derstine, Snell & Wilmer,
 4   on behalf of APS.
 5            (Audio difficulties.)
 6            MR. DERSTINE:  Are you hearing all that?
 7            (An off-the-record discussion ensued.)
 8            MS. BENALLY:  Good afternoon.  This is Linda
 9   Benally, representing APS.
10            How did that come through?
11            THE REPORTER:  Good.
12            CHMN. CHENAL:  Any other appearances?
13            (No response.)
14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  This is the hearing for
15   the Biscuit Flat Relocation Project.  I have a checklist
16   of things we normally cover.  And I will go through this
17   quickly.  I think we have met so many times on this case
18   we have a pretty good handle on it, so I am not
19   expecting we will -- even with the technical issues,
20   that there will be any surprises today.
21            I just want to confirm with counsel that lodging
22   for Committee members, for out-of-town members, or even
23   people that are in the Phoenix area that might want to
24   stay, that that's been arranged.
25            Mr. Derstine?
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 1            MR. DERSTINE:  Am I still getting the static?
 2   Yeah.
 3            Linda, why don't you go ahead and respond.
 4            MS. BENALLY:  Yes, hotel accommodations have
 5   been arranged and it has been communicated to --
 6            (Audio difficulties.)
 7            (An off-the-record discussion ensued.)
 8            MR. SPITZKOFF:  If I may, the static broke up
 9   last time, Mr. Chairman -- I think when you go on mute,
10   the audio works a lot better, just like that.
11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  I am on.  Now I am live,
12   and then I turn it on mute.
13            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Yes, that works.
14            MS. BENALLY:  Let's test your audio.
15            CHMN. CHENAL:  I have it on live.  Now I am
16   going to mute.
17            Which is better?
18            MR. DERSTINE:  Test, test, test.
19            Better, Colette?
20            THE REPORTER:  Yes.
21            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Next issue, any notices to
22   intervene or motions to intervene or interests to
23   intervene by any party?
24            Now, Colette --
25            MR. DERSTINE:  No intervenors, no, no
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 1   intervenors.  We haven't received any indication or even
 2   expressions of any real interest in the project.  I mean
 3   obviously we do have some public comment but nothing
 4   that rises to the level of intervention.
 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  And has the notice to affected
 6   jurisdictions been sent?
 7            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.
 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  And who are they?  Just for the
 9   record, who are the affected --
10            MR. DERSTINE:  ASLD, City of Phoenix, and
11   Maricopa County.
12            CHMN. CHENAL:  Publishing requirements that we
13   discussed in earlier meetings and in the procedural
14   order.
15            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes, publication has been done.
16   I think Mr. Duncan can, if you want the exact dates in
17   which the notice has been published, we can provide you
18   with that, but we did have it published as required and
19   satisfied the timing requirements.
20            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  I don't think we need
21   that.  You will have testimony at the hearing on that.
22            Any, any concerns about the agenda that I filed
23   with the Corporation Commission?
24            MR. DERSTINE:  No.
25            CHMN. CHENAL:  Leading questions.
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 1            Okay.  The hearing itself, we start next week,
 2   Monday, at 1:30.  What is the -- and, I am sorry, I
 3   don't have the document in front of me with the Notice
 4   of Hearing, so if you could, just summarize where the
 5   hearing is going to take place and how long you believe
 6   the hearing will take and what arrangements have been
 7   made for appearance by Zoom or other means for people
 8   that want to attend, Mr. Derstine.
 9            MR. DERSTINE:  The hearing will be held at the
10   Briarwood Country Club.  I can give you the address if
11   you would like it if I pull it up here.
12            But while I am looking for that, we have Peak
13   Audio; the same contractor who handled the last two
14   cases before the Committee will be doing the in-room
15   hearing presentation as well as be handling all the
16   virtual appearances for the members of the Committee who
17   intend to appear virtually, will also do the same
18   coordination for public comment with links for the
19   public comment to occur virtually as well.  So I think
20   we are in good shape there.
21            MS. BENALLY:  The address for the Briarwood
22   Country Club is 20800 North 135th Avenue in Sun City,
23   Arizona.
24            CHMN. CHENAL:  I like doing these hearings
25   better at my home when we had the Zoom meetings than
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 1   back at the office.  It is just, it was just a lot
 2   easier.  So I apologize for these technical snafus.
 3            All right.  We are not going to have a tour, so
 4   I assume there is going to be a flyover, a Google or
 5   some sort of flyover for the Committee to see?
 6            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  The folks at AECOM
 7   presented a virtual flyover.
 8            I think, as you know, Mr. Chairman, the project
 9   involves relocating a roughly three and a half mile
10   segment of the existing 500/230 kV line.  So the virtual
11   flyover will present the existing line as it sits out
12   there today.  And then there is a -- we will start back
13   at the beginning and do a simulation which shows where
14   we propose to have the line relocated to, as well as the
15   placement of the expanded Avery substation, as well as
16   the new substation site for the TS22 substation.
17            CHMN. CHENAL:  Very good.
18            As we usually do, we will expect there to be
19   sign-in sheets for anyone who shows up for public
20   comment so we have their contact information.
21            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  We will be able to take
22   addresses for the members of the public who appear
23   virtually, get their contact information, as well as
24   anyone who appears personally at the hearing location.
25            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Good.  Thank you very


Coash & Coash, Inc.







LS CASES 120 & 131    PREHEARING CONFERENCE   07/19/2021 Page 8


 1   much.
 2            Any issues about the hearing itself?  Any
 3   logistical issues or concerns that you are aware of at
 4   this time we should discuss?
 5            MR. DERSTINE:  I don't think any logistical
 6   concerns.
 7            The one thing we want to alert you to is we will
 8   present witnesses as a panel.  I think you may have seen
 9   our filing.  It has the witness summaries for the APS
10   witnesses.  We will be presenting them as a panel.
11            That filing also included our proposed
12   recommended opinion and order that we are going to file
13   a revised or updated version have that.  And I know you
14   may want to make some proposed changes to that before we
15   screen it to the Committee.  But we have some changes
16   more as to form than substance to that ROO, so we will
17   mark another version.
18            The only thing, other thing to alert you to is,
19   as indicated in our witness summaries, there will be a
20   representative of TSMC who will talk about their
21   project, give some background on the company.  We just
22   thought it would be of interest and value for the
23   Committee to learn more about the TSMC and the plant
24   that's going in out there, as well as the important
25   aspects, that is the sensitivity of their manufacturing
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 1   operations to the electromagnetic interference from the
 2   existing line that needs to be relocated, as well as
 3   their energy needs and the demands that justify the
 4   project.  So there will be a TSMC witness.
 5            I think we will present their, allow them to
 6   present their testimony early on.  I think he also has a
 7   video he would like to share with the Committee.  So I
 8   think, with your permission, they would present their
 9   video and present their statement, be available for
10   questions from the Committee, and then we would move
11   forward with the APS case in chief.
12            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman.
13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Ms. Benally.
14            I am being turned off on mute.  And I don't have
15   the mute button, so bear with me.
16            But, yes, Ms. Benally.
17            MS. BENALLY:  I would just like to clarify a
18   statement that Mr. Derstine made.  And I make this
19   without chatting with him, so I am happy to do what he
20   suggested as well because that's what we had discussed
21   earlier.
22            Basically this is regarding the amended ROO that
23   Mr. Derstine mentioned.  My plan was to file that as a
24   replacement to the existing exhibit so we don't change
25   the sequencing of exhibit numbers.  So when we file it
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 1   in Docket, the plan was to note that it is replacing a
 2   previously filed exhibit, if that's acceptable to you.
 3            CHMN. CHENAL:  I am sorry.  I think that's a
 4   Docket question.  I don't know that you can simply
 5   replace something with something else, because both
 6   items will be there.  It might be easier just to give it
 7   a new exhibit name, a number I mean, and -- because I
 8   think it is going to be a little confusing, where it
 9   has, the document has already been filed and given a,
10   you know, exhibit number.  You can't replace it; it is
11   there.  So I think we just give it a new number.  And
12   that will be okay.  That happens all the time in
13   hearings.
14            MS. BENALLY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I will
15   proceed accordingly.
16            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  How far is the hotel
17   from the hearing?
18            MR. DERSTINE:  Kevin.
19            MR. DUNCAN:  I will be able to figure that out.
20   I actually haven't measured it.  Give me just a moment.
21            MR. TURNER:  It is roughly less than two miles.
22            But please measure it, Kevin.
23            MR. DERSTINE:  Roughly two miles is probably
24   good enough.
25            CHMN. CHENAL:  I am being muted.  So let me
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 1   repeat what I said.  I said just a couple miles is good
 2   enough.  I don't need an exact measurement.  I was just
 3   curious how long it is estimated to take to drive from
 4   the hotel to the hearing site.  So it is a few minutes.
 5            Okay.  The exhibits, well, they haven't really
 6   been exchanged because there are no other parties, but
 7   the witness summaries have been filed.
 8            Are there any legal issues we need to discuss
 9   regarding the hearing?  I am not aware of any but I
10   thought I would ask.  It is on my checklist.
11            MR. DERSTINE:  I don't think there are any
12   issues.
13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Has the applicant met with the
14   Corporation Commission on the financial arrangements to
15   cover the -- to agree to cover the cost of the hearing
16   for the Committee members and the costs associated with
17   the hearing?
18            MR. DERSTINE:  We haven't had a personal
19   meeting, but we paid the filing fee and have given
20   assurances that we will cover additional costs.
21            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  That's good.
22            The ROO we talked about just generally, the
23   recommended order.  I have not had a chance to review
24   that, but I will, and I suspect will do in this case as
25   we have done in other cases.  With this situation, we
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 1   will, we will start with the ROO that you submit, with
 2   any changes we might want to have considered by the
 3   Committee, and then we will review it on a screen when
 4   we begin deliberations and have the static version and
 5   then the version that kind of includes any
 6   modifications.
 7            And are there any questions about that?  It is
 8   what we standard -- standard process.
 9            I am seeing a shake of the head from
10   Mr. Derstine.  Doesn't look like there are any issues
11   with that.
12            MR. DERSTINE:  No.  The biggest preview -- to
13   preview, the biggest issue in the ROO is carving out
14   language in CEC 131, which defined the original
15   corridor, and then replacing that with new language that
16   defines the new corridor that we are requesting from the
17   Committee for the amendment to 131.  So the focus will
18   be on that.
19            That's really -- unlike, you know, so many of
20   the other conditions and other issues that were
21   presented in the Southline case, which came to the
22   Committee in a similar posture, that it was an amendment
23   of an existing CEC, in this one it is replacing the
24   original described corridor with the new corridor to
25   allow us to relocate the affected line segment a
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 1   distance away from the TSMC plant site.
 2            And then we are -- I think once you take a look
 3   at the ROO, you will see that we have incorporated the
 4   conditions from your last case, I think it is 189, with
 5   a few minor exceptions where we didn't deem those
 6   conditions to be appropriate or modified the language --
 7   I think the only condition we modified was the cathodic
 8   protection, which we go back and forth with the
 9   Committee on with measurements and studies -- and we
10   have held to the language in 188 as opposed to language
11   that you had in 189.  So that's about it.
12            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, we will have a lively
13   discussion about that then, see what the Committee -- if
14   we can land on some language there.
15            I believe it was the Corporation Commission
16   Staff that requested that change.  And I can't remember
17   if they asked for measures versus studies, but that's my
18   recollection.  But we can look at that and make a
19   decision.
20            Will there be electric, electronic, you know,
21   tablets or iPads with the documents and exhibits loaded
22   and summaries loaded, Mr. Derstine?
23            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  And then -- I am sorry.  We
24   will coordinate with Tod and make sure that we get in
25   advance of the start of the hearing, which will be here
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 1   in a matter of days, the electronic version of all of
 2   our exhibits so they can then share those with the
 3   members of the Committee who are appearing virtually.
 4            And if you know, Tod may know at this point, but
 5   if you don't that's fine, too, but it is helpful for us
 6   in terms of setting up the room to know how many, how
 7   many Committee members may be in attendance in person
 8   and how many would be appearing virtually.
 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  Tod.
10            MR. BREWER:  As of right now there is only one
11   listed appearing virtually.
12            CHMN. CHENAL:  And the others are -- well, the
13   full Committee?
14            MR. BREWER:  Yes, sir.
15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Nine in attendance and one by
16   Zoom --
17            MR. BREWER:  Correct.
18            CHMN. CHENAL:  -- correct?
19            I believe that's it.  I mean we have met on this
20   so many times I think we have a good understanding of
21   the project.  And certainly chips, the lack of chips are
22   in the news.
23            How many -- how long do you think this hearing
24   will take, Mr. Derstine?
25            MR. DERSTINE:  I think we would anticipate being
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 1   done, half day Monday, all day Tuesday, early Wednesday,
 2   and so we may be left with, you know, do we finish on
 3   Wednesday, is it early enough to finish on Wednesday or
 4   do we push it to Thursday.  And we understand the
 5   reasons for not wanting to do the hard work, the
 6   detailed work at the end of the day.  So we will just
 7   see how it goes.
 8            I think with the presentation by TSMC, that will
 9   extend, you know, some of our case a bit.  We tried to,
10   you know, present the issues in an efficient way to the
11   Committee.  But I can see it getting us even into
12   Thursday morning or finishing up Wednesday afternoon,
13   would be my best estimate.
14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Including the deliberations,
15   finishing up Wednesday afternoon or Thursday morning, or
16   the case, the presentation of the case, Mr. Derstine?
17            MR. DERSTINE:  I think that's inclusive of the
18   deliberations.
19            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Okay.  All right.  I don't
20   think -- I don't have anything else.  We are looking
21   forward to this hearing.  We have a full Committee.  I
22   think that shows the level of interest in it.  It is not
23   like they come or not depending on what the hearing is
24   about, but we have a full hearing and most people are
25   appearing in person versus by Zoom.  So I think there is


Coash & Coash, Inc.







LS CASES 120 & 131    PREHEARING CONFERENCE   07/19/2021 Page 16


 1   a real interest in this project.
 2            And, I mean, it is international news, this
 3   plant.  So it is, you know, being built in Phoenix
 4   because of the shortages, so it is interesting.  Do you
 5   anticipate any news coverage of the hearing, I mean,
 6   reporters, things like that?
 7            MR. DERSTINE:  That's a good question.  I don't
 8   know.  I haven't heard anything to that effect.
 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.
10            MS. BENALLY:  Pardon me, Mr. Chairman.
11            Mr. Derstine, do we have additional information
12   on TS22 that we want to provide?
13            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah, that's a good point.
14            We, Mr. Chairman, we had a discussion this
15   morning.  I think as you may know from looking at the
16   project maps that we have shown in our prior conferences
17   with you, all of this land where the project is being
18   relocated and the substation facilities are being placed
19   is State Land.  So obviously they have and will
20   determine the -- well, have strong input in terms of
21   where we locate our substation, the TS22 substation, as
22   well as need to approve the -- give us right-of-way for
23   the relocated line.
24            Those ongoing discussions, I think, have
25   progressed to the point where State Land has provided us
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 1   with, just as of this morning or yesterday afternoon,
 2   input on where they would like the TS22 substation to be
 3   located.  That, the location, strays a bit out of the
 4   area that we had previously defined in a map.  But they,
 5   ASLD, would like it to follow a parcel line that is not
 6   regular in shape, and, therefore, our rectangular box
 7   didn't fully capture the area that State Land would
 8   prefer that we place the new TS22 substation.  So we are
 9   preparing maps that show that.
10            I don't think -- I think the majority of the,
11   even the new substation site as indicated by ASLD is
12   still within our original siting area.  As I indicated,
13   it strays out for a portion.  It is kind of an irregular
14   triangular shape to the north and there is a small
15   little bit to the south of the large rectangle that we
16   had identified as the future TS22 substation site.  And
17   the substation site, that larger block, was a much
18   larger acreage within which we were going to place the
19   TS22 substation to give us the flexibility for siting.
20            So with that new information from State Land, we
21   are preparing a revised map.  But, again, in all of this
22   land is owned by State Land, and I don't think their
23   expression or what they have given us in terms of their
24   preference for the TS22 substation location changes
25   dramatically where we had placed the TS22 substation
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 1   site in our maps and our prior communications with the
 2   public.
 3            So that's the only real development there.  And
 4   we will have new maps that show that ASLD preference for
 5   the location for TS22.
 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you for that.
 7            Does the -- is the substation site within the
 8   study area as set forth in the application?
 9            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.
10            CHMN. CHENAL:  And so any environmental studies
11   included the area where the substation is going to be
12   located, even though it is going to be a modified
13   location from what was -- we discussed previously?
14            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.
15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  That's the only legal
16   concern I would have, is that this is a modification for
17   an area that was not included within the application or
18   the maps and the study areas and the environmental
19   studies.  But if it is, you know, I think that's fine.
20            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  It is well within, well
21   within the study area, yeah, in the middle of the study
22   area.
23            CHMN. CHENAL:  And any of the environmental
24   studies would have included the area where the
25   substation is supposed -- will now be located, is that
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 1   correct, Mr. Derstine?
 2            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  Mr. Turner will testify --
 3   I will wait for you to mute --
 4            (Audio difficulties.)
 5            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes, the new location, or the
 6   expanded area provided by State Land is within the heart
 7   of our study area.  And Mr. Turner from AECOM will
 8   testify that the environmental study work and analysis
 9   performed for the TS22 substation site also covers this
10   expanded area provided by State Land.  So we are fine
11   there.
12            The one discussion we did have is we think it
13   makes sense to prepare some, maybe one additional visual
14   simulation just so that the Committee has a better
15   understanding of the visual impacts of this, of the TS22
16   substation in this new location.  Again, it is
17   preliminary.  It is possible that it could change, but I
18   think it is important that we cover it before the
19   Committee so that, if it is placed there, that we are
20   fully authorized to do that.  But we will have all the
21   information to the Committee so they can assess and
22   understand what sort of impacts the modified location
23   for TS22 has.  But we don't see any significant changes
24   in terms of the environmental impacts or visual impacts.
25            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Let me say all right
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 1   again because I was talking without being muted and -- I
 2   was still muted.
 3            All right.  I think that covered everything on
 4   my agenda on my checklist.  Business casual for
 5   clothing.  It goes without saying, but I will say it.
 6            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, can I confirm one
 7   issue?
 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Absolutely.
 9            MR. DERSTINE:  So our plan currently is to have
10   lunch for the Committee on day one, where the hearing
11   will start at 1:00.  So we will have lunch available at
12   the Briarwood location, and then breakfast and lunch
13   each successive hearing day, as well as the refreshments
14   at the break times, morning break, afternoon break.
15            I know when we were in Kingman there was some
16   concern, Committee members had traveled some distance
17   and showed up that morning wanting to have breakfast.
18   Is there any desire to have breakfast on day one?
19            CHMN. CHENAL:  I suspect the people that are
20   coming from out of town will come the night before.  So
21   that's probably a good, a good idea.  I don't know how
22   many people will show up for breakfast but there will
23   probably be a few.  Most of the people from out of town
24   I suspect will be driving in.  That would be very
25   thoughtful.
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 1            MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.  We will make sure that
 2   happens.
 3            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Thank you.
 4            Anything else, Mr. Derstine, Ms. Benally?
 5            Again, I am sorry this is a little -- we will
 6   get this corrected.  Just getting back into the office,
 7   you get used to working at home and we are now back in
 8   full time, and it is taking a little bit of getting used
 9   to, different computer systems and programs.  It is not
10   automatic like it was.
11            But I look forward to seeing everyone Monday.
12   And if anything comes up between now and then we need to
13   discuss, let me know.  Otherwise, we will adjourn and we
14   will see you on Monday.
15            Thank you, everyone.
16            MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you.
17            (The proceeding concluded at 2:41 p.m.)
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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 1   STATE OF ARIZONA    )
     COUNTY OF MARICOPA  )
 2
 3            BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were
     taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,
 4   true, and accurate record of the proceedings all done to
     the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings
 5   were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter
     reduced to print under my direction.
 6
              I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of
 7   the parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the
     outcome hereof.
 8
               I CERTIFY that I have complied with the
 9   ethical obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and
     ACJA 7-206 (J)(1)(g)(1) and (2).  Dated at Phoenix,
10   Arizona, this 20th day of July, 2021.
11
12
              _______________________________________
13                     COLETTE E. ROSS
                       Certified Reporter
14                     Certificate No. 50658
15
              I CERTIFY that Coash & Coash, Inc., has complied
16   with the ethical obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206
     (J)(1)(g)(1) through (6).
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
              _______________________________________
24                     COASH & COASH, INC.
                       Registered Reporting Firm
25                     Arizona RRF No. R1036
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 1            BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and
   
 2  numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the
   
 3  Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting
   
 4  Committee, via videoconference, in Phoenix, Arizona,
   
 5  commencing at 2:10 p.m. on the 19th of July, 2021.
   
 6 
   
 7  BEFORE:   THOMAS K. CHENAL, Chairman
   
 8 
   
 9 
    APPEARANCES:
10 
    For the Applicant:
11 
         SNELL & WILMER, L.L.P.
12       By Mr. Matt Derstine
         One Arizona Center
13       400 East Van Buren, Suite 1900
         Phoenix, Arizona 85004
14 
         and
15 
         PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION
16       Law Department
         By Ms. Linda Benally
17       400 North Fifth Street
         Phoenix, Arizona 85004
18 
   
19  ALSO PRESENT:
   
20       Mr. Jason Spitzkoff, Manager, Engineering T&D, APS
         Mr. Kevin Duncan, Senior Siting Consultant, APS
21       Ms. Anna Chaulk, State Regulatory Analyst, APS
         Ms. Aileen De Los Angeles, Paralegal, APS
22       Mr. Mark Turner, Environmental Consultant, AECOM
         Mr. Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Chenal
23 
   
24 
   
25 
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 1      CHMN. CHENAL: Let's begin and let's have
 2  appearances, please, at this time.
 3      MR. DERSTINE: Matthew Derstine, Snell & Wilmer,
 4  on behalf of APS.
 5      (Audio difficulties.)
 6      MR. DERSTINE: Are you hearing all that?
 7      (An off-the-record discussion ensued.)
 8      MS. BENALLY: Good afternoon.  This is Linda
 9  Benally, representing APS.
10      How did that come through?
11      THE REPORTER: Good.
12      CHMN. CHENAL: Any other appearances?
13      (No response.)
14      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  This is the hearing for
15  the Biscuit Flat Relocation Project.  I have a checklist
16  of things we normally cover.  And I will go through this
17  quickly.  I think we have met so many times on this case
18  we have a pretty good handle on it, so I am not
19  expecting we will -- even with the technical issues,
20  that there will be any surprises today.
21      I just want to confirm with counsel that lodging
22  for Committee members, for out-of-town members, or even
23  people that are in the Phoenix area that might want to
24  stay, that that's been arranged.
25      Mr. Derstine?
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 1      MR. DERSTINE: Am I still getting the static?
 2  Yeah.
 3      Linda, why don't you go ahead and respond.
 4      MS. BENALLY: Yes, hotel accommodations have
 5  been arranged and it has been communicated to --
 6      (Audio difficulties.)
 7      (An off-the-record discussion ensued.)
 8      MR. SPITZKOFF: If I may, the static broke up
 9  last time, Mr. Chairman -- I think when you go on mute,
10  the audio works a lot better, just like that.
11      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  I am on.  Now I am live,
12  and then I turn it on mute.
13      MR. SPITZKOFF: Yes, that works.
14      MS. BENALLY: Let's test your audio.
15      CHMN. CHENAL: I have it on live.  Now I am
16  going to mute.
17      Which is better?
18      MR. DERSTINE: Test, test, test.
19      Better, Colette?
20      THE REPORTER: Yes.
21      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  Next issue, any notices to
22  intervene or motions to intervene or interests to
23  intervene by any party?
24      Now, Colette --
25      MR. DERSTINE: No intervenors, no, no
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 1  intervenors.  We haven't received any indication or even
 2  expressions of any real interest in the project.  I mean
 3  obviously we do have some public comment but nothing
 4  that rises to the level of intervention.
 5      CHMN. CHENAL: And has the notice to affected
 6  jurisdictions been sent?
 7      MR. DERSTINE: Yes.
 8      CHMN. CHENAL: And who are they?  Just for the
 9  record, who are the affected --
10      MR. DERSTINE: ASLD, City of Phoenix, and
11  Maricopa County.
12      CHMN. CHENAL: Publishing requirements that we
13  discussed in earlier meetings and in the procedural
14  order.
15      MR. DERSTINE: Yes, publication has been done.
16  I think Mr. Duncan can, if you want the exact dates in
17  which the notice has been published, we can provide you
18  with that, but we did have it published as required and
19  satisfied the timing requirements.
20      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  I don't think we need
21  that.  You will have testimony at the hearing on that.
22      Any, any concerns about the agenda that I filed
23  with the Corporation Commission?
24      MR. DERSTINE: No.
25      CHMN. CHENAL: Leading questions.
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 1      Okay.  The hearing itself, we start next week,
 2  Monday, at 1:30.  What is the -- and, I am sorry, I
 3  don't have the document in front of me with the Notice
 4  of Hearing, so if you could, just summarize where the
 5  hearing is going to take place and how long you believe
 6  the hearing will take and what arrangements have been
 7  made for appearance by Zoom or other means for people
 8  that want to attend, Mr. Derstine.
 9      MR. DERSTINE: The hearing will be held at the
10  Briarwood Country Club.  I can give you the address if
11  you would like it if I pull it up here.
12      But while I am looking for that, we have Peak
13  Audio; the same contractor who handled the last two
14  cases before the Committee will be doing the in-room
15  hearing presentation as well as be handling all the
16  virtual appearances for the members of the Committee who
17  intend to appear virtually, will also do the same
18  coordination for public comment with links for the
19  public comment to occur virtually as well.  So I think
20  we are in good shape there.
21      MS. BENALLY: The address for the Briarwood
22  Country Club is 20800 North 135th Avenue in Sun City,
23  Arizona.
24      CHMN. CHENAL: I like doing these hearings
25  better at my home when we had the Zoom meetings than
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 1  back at the office.  It is just, it was just a lot
 2  easier.  So I apologize for these technical snafus.
 3      All right.  We are not going to have a tour, so
 4  I assume there is going to be a flyover, a Google or
 5  some sort of flyover for the Committee to see?
 6      MR. DERSTINE: Yes.  The folks at AECOM
 7  presented a virtual flyover.
 8      I think, as you know, Mr. Chairman, the project
 9  involves relocating a roughly three and a half mile
10  segment of the existing 500/230 kV line.  So the virtual
11  flyover will present the existing line as it sits out
12  there today.  And then there is a -- we will start back
13  at the beginning and do a simulation which shows where
14  we propose to have the line relocated to, as well as the
15  placement of the expanded Avery substation, as well as
16  the new substation site for the TS22 substation.
17      CHMN. CHENAL: Very good.
18      As we usually do, we will expect there to be
19  sign-in sheets for anyone who shows up for public
20  comment so we have their contact information.
21      MR. DERSTINE: Yes.  We will be able to take
22  addresses for the members of the public who appear
23  virtually, get their contact information, as well as
24  anyone who appears personally at the hearing location.
25      CHMN. CHENAL: All right.  Good.  Thank you very
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 1  much.
 2      Any issues about the hearing itself?  Any
 3  logistical issues or concerns that you are aware of at
 4  this time we should discuss?
 5      MR. DERSTINE: I don't think any logistical
 6  concerns.
 7      The one thing we want to alert you to is we will
 8  present witnesses as a panel.  I think you may have seen
 9  our filing.  It has the witness summaries for the APS
10  witnesses.  We will be presenting them as a panel.
11      That filing also included our proposed
12  recommended opinion and order that we are going to file
13  a revised or updated version have that.  And I know you
14  may want to make some proposed changes to that before we
15  screen it to the Committee.  But we have some changes
16  more as to form than substance to that ROO, so we will
17  mark another version.
18      The only thing, other thing to alert you to is,
19  as indicated in our witness summaries, there will be a
20  representative of TSMC who will talk about their
21  project, give some background on the company.  We just
22  thought it would be of interest and value for the
23  Committee to learn more about the TSMC and the plant
24  that's going in out there, as well as the important
25  aspects, that is the sensitivity of their manufacturing
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 1  operations to the electromagnetic interference from the
 2  existing line that needs to be relocated, as well as
 3  their energy needs and the demands that justify the
 4  project.  So there will be a TSMC witness.
 5      I think we will present their, allow them to
 6  present their testimony early on.  I think he also has a
 7  video he would like to share with the Committee.  So I
 8  think, with your permission, they would present their
 9  video and present their statement, be available for
10  questions from the Committee, and then we would move
11  forward with the APS case in chief.
12      MS. BENALLY: Mr. Chairman.
13      CHMN. CHENAL: Ms. Benally.
14      I am being turned off on mute.  And I don't have
15  the mute button, so bear with me.
16      But, yes, Ms. Benally.
17      MS. BENALLY: I would just like to clarify a
18  statement that Mr. Derstine made.  And I make this
19  without chatting with him, so I am happy to do what he
20  suggested as well because that's what we had discussed
21  earlier.
22      Basically this is regarding the amended ROO that
23  Mr. Derstine mentioned.  My plan was to file that as a
24  replacement to the existing exhibit so we don't change
25  the sequencing of exhibit numbers.  So when we file it
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 1  in Docket, the plan was to note that it is replacing a
 2  previously filed exhibit, if that's acceptable to you.
 3      CHMN. CHENAL: I am sorry.  I think that's a
 4  Docket question.  I don't know that you can simply
 5  replace something with something else, because both
 6  items will be there.  It might be easier just to give it
 7  a new exhibit name, a number I mean, and -- because I
 8  think it is going to be a little confusing, where it
 9  has, the document has already been filed and given a,
10  you know, exhibit number.  You can't replace it; it is
11  there.  So I think we just give it a new number.  And
12  that will be okay.  That happens all the time in
13  hearings.
14      MS. BENALLY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I will
15  proceed accordingly.
16      CHMN. CHENAL: All right.  How far is the hotel
17  from the hearing?
18      MR. DERSTINE: Kevin.
19      MR. DUNCAN: I will be able to figure that out.
20  I actually haven't measured it.  Give me just a moment.
21      MR. TURNER: It is roughly less than two miles.
22      But please measure it, Kevin.
23      MR. DERSTINE: Roughly two miles is probably
24  good enough.
25      CHMN. CHENAL: I am being muted.  So let me
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 1  repeat what I said.  I said just a couple miles is good
 2  enough.  I don't need an exact measurement.  I was just
 3  curious how long it is estimated to take to drive from
 4  the hotel to the hearing site.  So it is a few minutes.
 5      Okay.  The exhibits, well, they haven't really
 6  been exchanged because there are no other parties, but
 7  the witness summaries have been filed.
 8      Are there any legal issues we need to discuss
 9  regarding the hearing?  I am not aware of any but I
10  thought I would ask.  It is on my checklist.
11      MR. DERSTINE: I don't think there are any
12  issues.
13      CHMN. CHENAL: Has the applicant met with the
14  Corporation Commission on the financial arrangements to
15  cover the -- to agree to cover the cost of the hearing
16  for the Committee members and the costs associated with
17  the hearing?
18      MR. DERSTINE: We haven't had a personal
19  meeting, but we paid the filing fee and have given
20  assurances that we will cover additional costs.
21      CHMN. CHENAL: All right.  That's good.
22      The ROO we talked about just generally, the
23  recommended order.  I have not had a chance to review
24  that, but I will, and I suspect will do in this case as
25  we have done in other cases.  With this situation, we
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 1  will, we will start with the ROO that you submit, with
 2  any changes we might want to have considered by the
 3  Committee, and then we will review it on a screen when
 4  we begin deliberations and have the static version and
 5  then the version that kind of includes any
 6  modifications.
 7      And are there any questions about that?  It is
 8  what we standard -- standard process.
 9      I am seeing a shake of the head from
10  Mr. Derstine.  Doesn't look like there are any issues
11  with that.
12      MR. DERSTINE: No.  The biggest preview -- to
13  preview, the biggest issue in the ROO is carving out
14  language in CEC 131, which defined the original
15  corridor, and then replacing that with new language that
16  defines the new corridor that we are requesting from the
17  Committee for the amendment to 131.  So the focus will
18  be on that.
19      That's really -- unlike, you know, so many of
20  the other conditions and other issues that were
21  presented in the Southline case, which came to the
22  Committee in a similar posture, that it was an amendment
23  of an existing CEC, in this one it is replacing the
24  original described corridor with the new corridor to
25  allow us to relocate the affected line segment a
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 1  distance away from the TSMC plant site.
 2      And then we are -- I think once you take a look
 3  at the ROO, you will see that we have incorporated the
 4  conditions from your last case, I think it is 189, with
 5  a few minor exceptions where we didn't deem those
 6  conditions to be appropriate or modified the language --
 7  I think the only condition we modified was the cathodic
 8  protection, which we go back and forth with the
 9  Committee on with measurements and studies -- and we
10  have held to the language in 188 as opposed to language
11  that you had in 189.  So that's about it.
12      CHMN. CHENAL: Well, we will have a lively
13  discussion about that then, see what the Committee -- if
14  we can land on some language there.
15      I believe it was the Corporation Commission
16  Staff that requested that change.  And I can't remember
17  if they asked for measures versus studies, but that's my
18  recollection.  But we can look at that and make a
19  decision.
20      Will there be electric, electronic, you know,
21  tablets or iPads with the documents and exhibits loaded
22  and summaries loaded, Mr. Derstine?
23      MR. DERSTINE: Yes.  And then -- I am sorry.  We
24  will coordinate with Tod and make sure that we get in
25  advance of the start of the hearing, which will be here
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 1  in a matter of days, the electronic version of all of
 2  our exhibits so they can then share those with the
 3  members of the Committee who are appearing virtually.
 4      And if you know, Tod may know at this point, but
 5  if you don't that's fine, too, but it is helpful for us
 6  in terms of setting up the room to know how many, how
 7  many Committee members may be in attendance in person
 8  and how many would be appearing virtually.
 9      CHMN. CHENAL: Tod.
10      MR. BREWER: As of right now there is only one
11  listed appearing virtually.
12      CHMN. CHENAL: And the others are -- well, the
13  full Committee?
14      MR. BREWER: Yes, sir.
15      CHMN. CHENAL: Nine in attendance and one by
16  Zoom --
17      MR. BREWER: Correct.
18      CHMN. CHENAL: -- correct?
19      I believe that's it.  I mean we have met on this
20  so many times I think we have a good understanding of
21  the project.  And certainly chips, the lack of chips are
22  in the news.
23      How many -- how long do you think this hearing
24  will take, Mr. Derstine?
25      MR. DERSTINE: I think we would anticipate being
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 1  done, half day Monday, all day Tuesday, early Wednesday,
 2  and so we may be left with, you know, do we finish on
 3  Wednesday, is it early enough to finish on Wednesday or
 4  do we push it to Thursday.  And we understand the
 5  reasons for not wanting to do the hard work, the
 6  detailed work at the end of the day.  So we will just
 7  see how it goes.
 8      I think with the presentation by TSMC, that will
 9  extend, you know, some of our case a bit.  We tried to,
10  you know, present the issues in an efficient way to the
11  Committee.  But I can see it getting us even into
12  Thursday morning or finishing up Wednesday afternoon,
13  would be my best estimate.
14      CHMN. CHENAL: Including the deliberations,
15  finishing up Wednesday afternoon or Thursday morning, or
16  the case, the presentation of the case, Mr. Derstine?
17      MR. DERSTINE: I think that's inclusive of the
18  deliberations.
19      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  Okay.  All right.  I don't
20  think -- I don't have anything else.  We are looking
21  forward to this hearing.  We have a full Committee.  I
22  think that shows the level of interest in it.  It is not
23  like they come or not depending on what the hearing is
24  about, but we have a full hearing and most people are
25  appearing in person versus by Zoom.  So I think there is
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 1  a real interest in this project.
 2      And, I mean, it is international news, this
 3  plant.  So it is, you know, being built in Phoenix
 4  because of the shortages, so it is interesting.  Do you
 5  anticipate any news coverage of the hearing, I mean,
 6  reporters, things like that?
 7      MR. DERSTINE: That's a good question.  I don't
 8  know.  I haven't heard anything to that effect.
 9      CHMN. CHENAL: All right.
10      MS. BENALLY: Pardon me, Mr. Chairman.
11      Mr. Derstine, do we have additional information
12  on TS22 that we want to provide?
13      MR. DERSTINE: Yeah, that's a good point.
14      We, Mr. Chairman, we had a discussion this
15  morning.  I think as you may know from looking at the
16  project maps that we have shown in our prior conferences
17  with you, all of this land where the project is being
18  relocated and the substation facilities are being placed
19  is State Land.  So obviously they have and will
20  determine the -- well, have strong input in terms of
21  where we locate our substation, the TS22 substation, as
22  well as need to approve the -- give us right-of-way for
23  the relocated line.
24      Those ongoing discussions, I think, have
25  progressed to the point where State Land has provided us
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 1  with, just as of this morning or yesterday afternoon,
 2  input on where they would like the TS22 substation to be
 3  located.  That, the location, strays a bit out of the
 4  area that we had previously defined in a map.  But they,
 5  ASLD, would like it to follow a parcel line that is not
 6  regular in shape, and, therefore, our rectangular box
 7  didn't fully capture the area that State Land would
 8  prefer that we place the new TS22 substation.  So we are
 9  preparing maps that show that.
10      I don't think -- I think the majority of the,
11  even the new substation site as indicated by ASLD is
12  still within our original siting area.  As I indicated,
13  it strays out for a portion.  It is kind of an irregular
14  triangular shape to the north and there is a small
15  little bit to the south of the large rectangle that we
16  had identified as the future TS22 substation site.  And
17  the substation site, that larger block, was a much
18  larger acreage within which we were going to place the
19  TS22 substation to give us the flexibility for siting.
20      So with that new information from State Land, we
21  are preparing a revised map.  But, again, in all of this
22  land is owned by State Land, and I don't think their
23  expression or what they have given us in terms of their
24  preference for the TS22 substation location changes
25  dramatically where we had placed the TS22 substation
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 1  site in our maps and our prior communications with the
 2  public.
 3      So that's the only real development there.  And
 4  we will have new maps that show that ASLD preference for
 5  the location for TS22.
 6      CHMN. CHENAL: Thank you for that.
 7      Does the -- is the substation site within the
 8  study area as set forth in the application?
 9      MR. DERSTINE: Yes.
10      CHMN. CHENAL: And so any environmental studies
11  included the area where the substation is going to be
12  located, even though it is going to be a modified
13  location from what was -- we discussed previously?
14      MR. DERSTINE: Yes.
15      CHMN. CHENAL: Okay.  That's the only legal
16  concern I would have, is that this is a modification for
17  an area that was not included within the application or
18  the maps and the study areas and the environmental
19  studies.  But if it is, you know, I think that's fine.
20      MR. DERSTINE: Yeah.  It is well within, well
21  within the study area, yeah, in the middle of the study
22  area.
23      CHMN. CHENAL: And any of the environmental
24  studies would have included the area where the
25  substation is supposed -- will now be located, is that
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 1  correct, Mr. Derstine?
 2      MR. DERSTINE: Yes.  Mr. Turner will testify --
 3  I will wait for you to mute --
 4      (Audio difficulties.)
 5      MR. DERSTINE: Yes, the new location, or the
 6  expanded area provided by State Land is within the heart
 7  of our study area.  And Mr. Turner from AECOM will
 8  testify that the environmental study work and analysis
 9  performed for the TS22 substation site also covers this
10  expanded area provided by State Land.  So we are fine
11  there.
12      The one discussion we did have is we think it
13  makes sense to prepare some, maybe one additional visual
14  simulation just so that the Committee has a better
15  understanding of the visual impacts of this, of the TS22
16  substation in this new location.  Again, it is
17  preliminary.  It is possible that it could change, but I
18  think it is important that we cover it before the
19  Committee so that, if it is placed there, that we are
20  fully authorized to do that.  But we will have all the
21  information to the Committee so they can assess and
22  understand what sort of impacts the modified location
23  for TS22 has.  But we don't see any significant changes
24  in terms of the environmental impacts or visual impacts.
25      CHMN. CHENAL: All right.  Let me say all right
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 1  again because I was talking without being muted and -- I
 2  was still muted.
 3      All right.  I think that covered everything on
 4  my agenda on my checklist.  Business casual for
 5  clothing.  It goes without saying, but I will say it.
 6      MR. DERSTINE: Mr. Chairman, can I confirm one
 7  issue?
 8      CHMN. CHENAL: Absolutely.
 9      MR. DERSTINE: So our plan currently is to have
10  lunch for the Committee on day one, where the hearing
11  will start at 1:00.  So we will have lunch available at
12  the Briarwood location, and then breakfast and lunch
13  each successive hearing day, as well as the refreshments
14  at the break times, morning break, afternoon break.
15      I know when we were in Kingman there was some
16  concern, Committee members had traveled some distance
17  and showed up that morning wanting to have breakfast.
18  Is there any desire to have breakfast on day one?
19      CHMN. CHENAL: I suspect the people that are
20  coming from out of town will come the night before.  So
21  that's probably a good, a good idea.  I don't know how
22  many people will show up for breakfast but there will
23  probably be a few.  Most of the people from out of town
24  I suspect will be driving in.  That would be very
25  thoughtful.
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 1      MR. DERSTINE: Okay.  We will make sure that
 2  happens.
 3      CHMN. CHENAL: All right.  Thank you.
 4      Anything else, Mr. Derstine, Ms. Benally?
 5      Again, I am sorry this is a little -- we will
 6  get this corrected.  Just getting back into the office,
 7  you get used to working at home and we are now back in
 8  full time, and it is taking a little bit of getting used
 9  to, different computer systems and programs.  It is not
10  automatic like it was.
11      But I look forward to seeing everyone Monday.
12  And if anything comes up between now and then we need to
13  discuss, let me know.  Otherwise, we will adjourn and we
14  will see you on Monday.
15      Thank you, everyone.
16      MR. DERSTINE: Thank you.
17      (The proceeding concluded at 2:41 p.m.)
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
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 1            CHMN. CHENAL:  Let's begin and let's have
  


 2   appearances, please, at this time.
  


 3            MR. DERSTINE:  Matthew Derstine, Snell & Wilmer,
  


 4   on behalf of APS.
  


 5            (Audio difficulties.)
  


 6            MR. DERSTINE:  Are you hearing all that?
  


 7            (An off-the-record discussion ensued.)
  


 8            MS. BENALLY:  Good afternoon.  This is Linda
  


 9   Benally, representing APS.
  


10            How did that come through?
  


11            THE REPORTER:  Good.
  


12            CHMN. CHENAL:  Any other appearances?
  


13            (No response.)
  


14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  This is the hearing for
  


15   the Biscuit Flat Relocation Project.  I have a checklist
  


16   of things we normally cover.  And I will go through this
  


17   quickly.  I think we have met so many times on this case
  


18   we have a pretty good handle on it, so I am not
  


19   expecting we will -- even with the technical issues,
  


20   that there will be any surprises today.
  


21            I just want to confirm with counsel that lodging
  


22   for Committee members, for out-of-town members, or even
  


23   people that are in the Phoenix area that might want to
  


24   stay, that that's been arranged.
  


25            Mr. Derstine?
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 1            MR. DERSTINE:  Am I still getting the static?
  


 2   Yeah.
  


 3            Linda, why don't you go ahead and respond.
  


 4            MS. BENALLY:  Yes, hotel accommodations have
  


 5   been arranged and it has been communicated to --
  


 6            (Audio difficulties.)
  


 7            (An off-the-record discussion ensued.)
  


 8            MR. SPITZKOFF:  If I may, the static broke up
  


 9   last time, Mr. Chairman -- I think when you go on mute,
  


10   the audio works a lot better, just like that.
  


11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  I am on.  Now I am live,
  


12   and then I turn it on mute.
  


13            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Yes, that works.
  


14            MS. BENALLY:  Let's test your audio.
  


15            CHMN. CHENAL:  I have it on live.  Now I am
  


16   going to mute.
  


17            Which is better?
  


18            MR. DERSTINE:  Test, test, test.
  


19            Better, Colette?
  


20            THE REPORTER:  Yes.
  


21            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Next issue, any notices to
  


22   intervene or motions to intervene or interests to
  


23   intervene by any party?
  


24            Now, Colette --
  


25            MR. DERSTINE:  No intervenors, no, no
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 1   intervenors.  We haven't received any indication or even
  


 2   expressions of any real interest in the project.  I mean
  


 3   obviously we do have some public comment but nothing
  


 4   that rises to the level of intervention.
  


 5            CHMN. CHENAL:  And has the notice to affected
  


 6   jurisdictions been sent?
  


 7            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.
  


 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  And who are they?  Just for the
  


 9   record, who are the affected --
  


10            MR. DERSTINE:  ASLD, City of Phoenix, and
  


11   Maricopa County.
  


12            CHMN. CHENAL:  Publishing requirements that we
  


13   discussed in earlier meetings and in the procedural
  


14   order.
  


15            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes, publication has been done.
  


16   I think Mr. Duncan can, if you want the exact dates in
  


17   which the notice has been published, we can provide you
  


18   with that, but we did have it published as required and
  


19   satisfied the timing requirements.
  


20            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  I don't think we need
  


21   that.  You will have testimony at the hearing on that.
  


22            Any, any concerns about the agenda that I filed
  


23   with the Corporation Commission?
  


24            MR. DERSTINE:  No.
  


25            CHMN. CHENAL:  Leading questions.
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 1            Okay.  The hearing itself, we start next week,
  


 2   Monday, at 1:30.  What is the -- and, I am sorry, I
  


 3   don't have the document in front of me with the Notice
  


 4   of Hearing, so if you could, just summarize where the
  


 5   hearing is going to take place and how long you believe
  


 6   the hearing will take and what arrangements have been
  


 7   made for appearance by Zoom or other means for people
  


 8   that want to attend, Mr. Derstine.
  


 9            MR. DERSTINE:  The hearing will be held at the
  


10   Briarwood Country Club.  I can give you the address if
  


11   you would like it if I pull it up here.
  


12            But while I am looking for that, we have Peak
  


13   Audio; the same contractor who handled the last two
  


14   cases before the Committee will be doing the in-room
  


15   hearing presentation as well as be handling all the
  


16   virtual appearances for the members of the Committee who
  


17   intend to appear virtually, will also do the same
  


18   coordination for public comment with links for the
  


19   public comment to occur virtually as well.  So I think
  


20   we are in good shape there.
  


21            MS. BENALLY:  The address for the Briarwood
  


22   Country Club is 20800 North 135th Avenue in Sun City,
  


23   Arizona.
  


24            CHMN. CHENAL:  I like doing these hearings
  


25   better at my home when we had the Zoom meetings than
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 1   back at the office.  It is just, it was just a lot
  


 2   easier.  So I apologize for these technical snafus.
  


 3            All right.  We are not going to have a tour, so
  


 4   I assume there is going to be a flyover, a Google or
  


 5   some sort of flyover for the Committee to see?
  


 6            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  The folks at AECOM
  


 7   presented a virtual flyover.
  


 8            I think, as you know, Mr. Chairman, the project
  


 9   involves relocating a roughly three and a half mile
  


10   segment of the existing 500/230 kV line.  So the virtual
  


11   flyover will present the existing line as it sits out
  


12   there today.  And then there is a -- we will start back
  


13   at the beginning and do a simulation which shows where
  


14   we propose to have the line relocated to, as well as the
  


15   placement of the expanded Avery substation, as well as
  


16   the new substation site for the TS22 substation.
  


17            CHMN. CHENAL:  Very good.
  


18            As we usually do, we will expect there to be
  


19   sign-in sheets for anyone who shows up for public
  


20   comment so we have their contact information.
  


21            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  We will be able to take
  


22   addresses for the members of the public who appear
  


23   virtually, get their contact information, as well as
  


24   anyone who appears personally at the hearing location.
  


25            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Good.  Thank you very
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 1   much.
  


 2            Any issues about the hearing itself?  Any
  


 3   logistical issues or concerns that you are aware of at
  


 4   this time we should discuss?
  


 5            MR. DERSTINE:  I don't think any logistical
  


 6   concerns.
  


 7            The one thing we want to alert you to is we will
  


 8   present witnesses as a panel.  I think you may have seen
  


 9   our filing.  It has the witness summaries for the APS
  


10   witnesses.  We will be presenting them as a panel.
  


11            That filing also included our proposed
  


12   recommended opinion and order that we are going to file
  


13   a revised or updated version have that.  And I know you
  


14   may want to make some proposed changes to that before we
  


15   screen it to the Committee.  But we have some changes
  


16   more as to form than substance to that ROO, so we will
  


17   mark another version.
  


18            The only thing, other thing to alert you to is,
  


19   as indicated in our witness summaries, there will be a
  


20   representative of TSMC who will talk about their
  


21   project, give some background on the company.  We just
  


22   thought it would be of interest and value for the
  


23   Committee to learn more about the TSMC and the plant
  


24   that's going in out there, as well as the important
  


25   aspects, that is the sensitivity of their manufacturing
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 1   operations to the electromagnetic interference from the
  


 2   existing line that needs to be relocated, as well as
  


 3   their energy needs and the demands that justify the
  


 4   project.  So there will be a TSMC witness.
  


 5            I think we will present their, allow them to
  


 6   present their testimony early on.  I think he also has a
  


 7   video he would like to share with the Committee.  So I
  


 8   think, with your permission, they would present their
  


 9   video and present their statement, be available for
  


10   questions from the Committee, and then we would move
  


11   forward with the APS case in chief.
  


12            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman.
  


13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Ms. Benally.
  


14            I am being turned off on mute.  And I don't have
  


15   the mute button, so bear with me.
  


16            But, yes, Ms. Benally.
  


17            MS. BENALLY:  I would just like to clarify a
  


18   statement that Mr. Derstine made.  And I make this
  


19   without chatting with him, so I am happy to do what he
  


20   suggested as well because that's what we had discussed
  


21   earlier.
  


22            Basically this is regarding the amended ROO that
  


23   Mr. Derstine mentioned.  My plan was to file that as a
  


24   replacement to the existing exhibit so we don't change
  


25   the sequencing of exhibit numbers.  So when we file it
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 1   in Docket, the plan was to note that it is replacing a
  


 2   previously filed exhibit, if that's acceptable to you.
  


 3            CHMN. CHENAL:  I am sorry.  I think that's a
  


 4   Docket question.  I don't know that you can simply
  


 5   replace something with something else, because both
  


 6   items will be there.  It might be easier just to give it
  


 7   a new exhibit name, a number I mean, and -- because I
  


 8   think it is going to be a little confusing, where it
  


 9   has, the document has already been filed and given a,
  


10   you know, exhibit number.  You can't replace it; it is
  


11   there.  So I think we just give it a new number.  And
  


12   that will be okay.  That happens all the time in
  


13   hearings.
  


14            MS. BENALLY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I will
  


15   proceed accordingly.
  


16            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  How far is the hotel
  


17   from the hearing?
  


18            MR. DERSTINE:  Kevin.
  


19            MR. DUNCAN:  I will be able to figure that out.
  


20   I actually haven't measured it.  Give me just a moment.
  


21            MR. TURNER:  It is roughly less than two miles.
  


22            But please measure it, Kevin.
  


23            MR. DERSTINE:  Roughly two miles is probably
  


24   good enough.
  


25            CHMN. CHENAL:  I am being muted.  So let me
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 1   repeat what I said.  I said just a couple miles is good
  


 2   enough.  I don't need an exact measurement.  I was just
  


 3   curious how long it is estimated to take to drive from
  


 4   the hotel to the hearing site.  So it is a few minutes.
  


 5            Okay.  The exhibits, well, they haven't really
  


 6   been exchanged because there are no other parties, but
  


 7   the witness summaries have been filed.
  


 8            Are there any legal issues we need to discuss
  


 9   regarding the hearing?  I am not aware of any but I
  


10   thought I would ask.  It is on my checklist.
  


11            MR. DERSTINE:  I don't think there are any
  


12   issues.
  


13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Has the applicant met with the
  


14   Corporation Commission on the financial arrangements to
  


15   cover the -- to agree to cover the cost of the hearing
  


16   for the Committee members and the costs associated with
  


17   the hearing?
  


18            MR. DERSTINE:  We haven't had a personal
  


19   meeting, but we paid the filing fee and have given
  


20   assurances that we will cover additional costs.
  


21            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  That's good.
  


22            The ROO we talked about just generally, the
  


23   recommended order.  I have not had a chance to review
  


24   that, but I will, and I suspect will do in this case as
  


25   we have done in other cases.  With this situation, we
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 1   will, we will start with the ROO that you submit, with
  


 2   any changes we might want to have considered by the
  


 3   Committee, and then we will review it on a screen when
  


 4   we begin deliberations and have the static version and
  


 5   then the version that kind of includes any
  


 6   modifications.
  


 7            And are there any questions about that?  It is
  


 8   what we standard -- standard process.
  


 9            I am seeing a shake of the head from
  


10   Mr. Derstine.  Doesn't look like there are any issues
  


11   with that.
  


12            MR. DERSTINE:  No.  The biggest preview -- to
  


13   preview, the biggest issue in the ROO is carving out
  


14   language in CEC 131, which defined the original
  


15   corridor, and then replacing that with new language that
  


16   defines the new corridor that we are requesting from the
  


17   Committee for the amendment to 131.  So the focus will
  


18   be on that.
  


19            That's really -- unlike, you know, so many of
  


20   the other conditions and other issues that were
  


21   presented in the Southline case, which came to the
  


22   Committee in a similar posture, that it was an amendment
  


23   of an existing CEC, in this one it is replacing the
  


24   original described corridor with the new corridor to
  


25   allow us to relocate the affected line segment a
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 1   distance away from the TSMC plant site.
  


 2            And then we are -- I think once you take a look
  


 3   at the ROO, you will see that we have incorporated the
  


 4   conditions from your last case, I think it is 189, with
  


 5   a few minor exceptions where we didn't deem those
  


 6   conditions to be appropriate or modified the language --
  


 7   I think the only condition we modified was the cathodic
  


 8   protection, which we go back and forth with the
  


 9   Committee on with measurements and studies -- and we
  


10   have held to the language in 188 as opposed to language
  


11   that you had in 189.  So that's about it.
  


12            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, we will have a lively
  


13   discussion about that then, see what the Committee -- if
  


14   we can land on some language there.
  


15            I believe it was the Corporation Commission
  


16   Staff that requested that change.  And I can't remember
  


17   if they asked for measures versus studies, but that's my
  


18   recollection.  But we can look at that and make a
  


19   decision.
  


20            Will there be electric, electronic, you know,
  


21   tablets or iPads with the documents and exhibits loaded
  


22   and summaries loaded, Mr. Derstine?
  


23            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  And then -- I am sorry.  We
  


24   will coordinate with Tod and make sure that we get in
  


25   advance of the start of the hearing, which will be here
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 1   in a matter of days, the electronic version of all of
  


 2   our exhibits so they can then share those with the
  


 3   members of the Committee who are appearing virtually.
  


 4            And if you know, Tod may know at this point, but
  


 5   if you don't that's fine, too, but it is helpful for us
  


 6   in terms of setting up the room to know how many, how
  


 7   many Committee members may be in attendance in person
  


 8   and how many would be appearing virtually.
  


 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  Tod.
  


10            MR. BREWER:  As of right now there is only one
  


11   listed appearing virtually.
  


12            CHMN. CHENAL:  And the others are -- well, the
  


13   full Committee?
  


14            MR. BREWER:  Yes, sir.
  


15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Nine in attendance and one by
  


16   Zoom --
  


17            MR. BREWER:  Correct.
  


18            CHMN. CHENAL:  -- correct?
  


19            I believe that's it.  I mean we have met on this
  


20   so many times I think we have a good understanding of
  


21   the project.  And certainly chips, the lack of chips are
  


22   in the news.
  


23            How many -- how long do you think this hearing
  


24   will take, Mr. Derstine?
  


25            MR. DERSTINE:  I think we would anticipate being
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 1   done, half day Monday, all day Tuesday, early Wednesday,
  


 2   and so we may be left with, you know, do we finish on
  


 3   Wednesday, is it early enough to finish on Wednesday or
  


 4   do we push it to Thursday.  And we understand the
  


 5   reasons for not wanting to do the hard work, the
  


 6   detailed work at the end of the day.  So we will just
  


 7   see how it goes.
  


 8            I think with the presentation by TSMC, that will
  


 9   extend, you know, some of our case a bit.  We tried to,
  


10   you know, present the issues in an efficient way to the
  


11   Committee.  But I can see it getting us even into
  


12   Thursday morning or finishing up Wednesday afternoon,
  


13   would be my best estimate.
  


14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Including the deliberations,
  


15   finishing up Wednesday afternoon or Thursday morning, or
  


16   the case, the presentation of the case, Mr. Derstine?
  


17            MR. DERSTINE:  I think that's inclusive of the
  


18   deliberations.
  


19            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Okay.  All right.  I don't
  


20   think -- I don't have anything else.  We are looking
  


21   forward to this hearing.  We have a full Committee.  I
  


22   think that shows the level of interest in it.  It is not
  


23   like they come or not depending on what the hearing is
  


24   about, but we have a full hearing and most people are
  


25   appearing in person versus by Zoom.  So I think there is


      COASH & COASH, INC.                  602-258-1440
      www.coashandcoash.com                 Phoenix, AZ







LS CASES 120 & 131    PREHEARING CONFERENCE   07/19/2021 16


  


 1   a real interest in this project.
  


 2            And, I mean, it is international news, this
  


 3   plant.  So it is, you know, being built in Phoenix
  


 4   because of the shortages, so it is interesting.  Do you
  


 5   anticipate any news coverage of the hearing, I mean,
  


 6   reporters, things like that?
  


 7            MR. DERSTINE:  That's a good question.  I don't
  


 8   know.  I haven't heard anything to that effect.
  


 9            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.
  


10            MS. BENALLY:  Pardon me, Mr. Chairman.
  


11            Mr. Derstine, do we have additional information
  


12   on TS22 that we want to provide?
  


13            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah, that's a good point.
  


14            We, Mr. Chairman, we had a discussion this
  


15   morning.  I think as you may know from looking at the
  


16   project maps that we have shown in our prior conferences
  


17   with you, all of this land where the project is being
  


18   relocated and the substation facilities are being placed
  


19   is State Land.  So obviously they have and will
  


20   determine the -- well, have strong input in terms of
  


21   where we locate our substation, the TS22 substation, as
  


22   well as need to approve the -- give us right-of-way for
  


23   the relocated line.
  


24            Those ongoing discussions, I think, have
  


25   progressed to the point where State Land has provided us
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 1   with, just as of this morning or yesterday afternoon,
  


 2   input on where they would like the TS22 substation to be
  


 3   located.  That, the location, strays a bit out of the
  


 4   area that we had previously defined in a map.  But they,
  


 5   ASLD, would like it to follow a parcel line that is not
  


 6   regular in shape, and, therefore, our rectangular box
  


 7   didn't fully capture the area that State Land would
  


 8   prefer that we place the new TS22 substation.  So we are
  


 9   preparing maps that show that.
  


10            I don't think -- I think the majority of the,
  


11   even the new substation site as indicated by ASLD is
  


12   still within our original siting area.  As I indicated,
  


13   it strays out for a portion.  It is kind of an irregular
  


14   triangular shape to the north and there is a small
  


15   little bit to the south of the large rectangle that we
  


16   had identified as the future TS22 substation site.  And
  


17   the substation site, that larger block, was a much
  


18   larger acreage within which we were going to place the
  


19   TS22 substation to give us the flexibility for siting.
  


20            So with that new information from State Land, we
  


21   are preparing a revised map.  But, again, in all of this
  


22   land is owned by State Land, and I don't think their
  


23   expression or what they have given us in terms of their
  


24   preference for the TS22 substation location changes
  


25   dramatically where we had placed the TS22 substation
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 1   site in our maps and our prior communications with the
  


 2   public.
  


 3            So that's the only real development there.  And
  


 4   we will have new maps that show that ASLD preference for
  


 5   the location for TS22.
  


 6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you for that.
  


 7            Does the -- is the substation site within the
  


 8   study area as set forth in the application?
  


 9            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.
  


10            CHMN. CHENAL:  And so any environmental studies
  


11   included the area where the substation is going to be
  


12   located, even though it is going to be a modified
  


13   location from what was -- we discussed previously?
  


14            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.
  


15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  That's the only legal
  


16   concern I would have, is that this is a modification for
  


17   an area that was not included within the application or
  


18   the maps and the study areas and the environmental
  


19   studies.  But if it is, you know, I think that's fine.
  


20            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  It is well within, well
  


21   within the study area, yeah, in the middle of the study
  


22   area.
  


23            CHMN. CHENAL:  And any of the environmental
  


24   studies would have included the area where the
  


25   substation is supposed -- will now be located, is that
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 1   correct, Mr. Derstine?
  


 2            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  Mr. Turner will testify --
  


 3   I will wait for you to mute --
  


 4            (Audio difficulties.)
  


 5            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes, the new location, or the
  


 6   expanded area provided by State Land is within the heart
  


 7   of our study area.  And Mr. Turner from AECOM will
  


 8   testify that the environmental study work and analysis
  


 9   performed for the TS22 substation site also covers this
  


10   expanded area provided by State Land.  So we are fine
  


11   there.
  


12            The one discussion we did have is we think it
  


13   makes sense to prepare some, maybe one additional visual
  


14   simulation just so that the Committee has a better
  


15   understanding of the visual impacts of this, of the TS22
  


16   substation in this new location.  Again, it is
  


17   preliminary.  It is possible that it could change, but I
  


18   think it is important that we cover it before the
  


19   Committee so that, if it is placed there, that we are
  


20   fully authorized to do that.  But we will have all the
  


21   information to the Committee so they can assess and
  


22   understand what sort of impacts the modified location
  


23   for TS22 has.  But we don't see any significant changes
  


24   in terms of the environmental impacts or visual impacts.
  


25            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Let me say all right
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 1   again because I was talking without being muted and -- I
  


 2   was still muted.
  


 3            All right.  I think that covered everything on
  


 4   my agenda on my checklist.  Business casual for
  


 5   clothing.  It goes without saying, but I will say it.
  


 6            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, can I confirm one
  


 7   issue?
  


 8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Absolutely.
  


 9            MR. DERSTINE:  So our plan currently is to have
  


10   lunch for the Committee on day one, where the hearing
  


11   will start at 1:00.  So we will have lunch available at
  


12   the Briarwood location, and then breakfast and lunch
  


13   each successive hearing day, as well as the refreshments
  


14   at the break times, morning break, afternoon break.
  


15            I know when we were in Kingman there was some
  


16   concern, Committee members had traveled some distance
  


17   and showed up that morning wanting to have breakfast.
  


18   Is there any desire to have breakfast on day one?
  


19            CHMN. CHENAL:  I suspect the people that are
  


20   coming from out of town will come the night before.  So
  


21   that's probably a good, a good idea.  I don't know how
  


22   many people will show up for breakfast but there will
  


23   probably be a few.  Most of the people from out of town
  


24   I suspect will be driving in.  That would be very
  


25   thoughtful.
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 1            MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.  We will make sure that
  


 2   happens.
  


 3            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Thank you.
  


 4            Anything else, Mr. Derstine, Ms. Benally?
  


 5            Again, I am sorry this is a little -- we will
  


 6   get this corrected.  Just getting back into the office,
  


 7   you get used to working at home and we are now back in
  


 8   full time, and it is taking a little bit of getting used
  


 9   to, different computer systems and programs.  It is not
  


10   automatic like it was.
  


11            But I look forward to seeing everyone Monday.
  


12   And if anything comes up between now and then we need to
  


13   discuss, let me know.  Otherwise, we will adjourn and we
  


14   will see you on Monday.
  


15            Thank you, everyone.
  


16            MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you.
  


17            (The proceeding concluded at 2:41 p.m.)
  


18
  


19
  


20
  


21
  


22
  


23
  


24
  


25


      COASH & COASH, INC.                  602-258-1440
      www.coashandcoash.com                 Phoenix, AZ







LS CASES 120 & 131    PREHEARING CONFERENCE   07/19/2021 22


  
  


 1   STATE OF ARIZONA    )
   COUNTY OF MARICOPA  )


 2
  


 3            BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were
   taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,


 4   true, and accurate record of the proceedings all done to
   the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings


 5   were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter
   reduced to print under my direction.


 6
            I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of


 7   the parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the
   outcome hereof.


 8
             I CERTIFY that I have complied with the


 9   ethical obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and
   ACJA 7-206 (J)(1)(g)(1) and (2).  Dated at Phoenix,


10   Arizona, this 20th day of July, 2021.
  


11
  


12
            _______________________________________


13                     COLETTE E. ROSS
                     Certified Reporter


14                     Certificate No. 50658
  


15
            I CERTIFY that Coash & Coash, Inc., has complied


16   with the ethical obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206
   (J)(1)(g)(1) through (6).


17
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19
  


20
  


21
  


22
  


23
            _______________________________________


24                     COASH & COASH, INC.
                     Registered Reporting Firm


25                     Arizona RRF No. R1036
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           1             BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and



           2   numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the



           3   Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting



           4   Committee, via videoconference, in Phoenix, Arizona,



           5   commencing at 2:10 p.m. on the 19th of July, 2021.



           6



           7   BEFORE:   THOMAS K. CHENAL, Chairman



           8



           9

               APPEARANCES:

          10

               For the Applicant:

          11

                    SNELL & WILMER, L.L.P.

          12        By Mr. Matt Derstine

                    One Arizona Center

          13        400 East Van Buren, Suite 1900

                    Phoenix, Arizona 85004

          14

                    and

          15

                    PINNACLE WEST CAPITAL CORPORATION

          16        Law Department

                    By Ms. Linda Benally

          17        400 North Fifth Street

                    Phoenix, Arizona 85004

          18



          19   ALSO PRESENT:



          20        Mr. Jason Spitzkoff, Manager, Engineering T&D, APS

                    Mr. Kevin Duncan, Senior Siting Consultant, APS

          21        Ms. Anna Chaulk, State Regulatory Analyst, APS

                    Ms. Aileen De Los Angeles, Paralegal, APS

          22        Mr. Mark Turner, Environmental Consultant, AECOM

                    Mr. Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Chenal

          23
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          25





                  COASH & COASH, INC.                  602-258-1440



                  www.coashandcoash.com                 Phoenix, AZ

�



                 LS CASES 120 & 131    PREHEARING CONFERENCE   07/19/2021

                                                                      3





           1            CHMN. CHENAL:  Let's begin and let's have



           2   appearances, please, at this time.



           3            MR. DERSTINE:  Matthew Derstine, Snell & Wilmer,



           4   on behalf of APS.



           5            (Audio difficulties.)



           6            MR. DERSTINE:  Are you hearing all that?



           7            (An off-the-record discussion ensued.)



           8            MS. BENALLY:  Good afternoon.  This is Linda



           9   Benally, representing APS.



          10            How did that come through?



          11            THE REPORTER:  Good.



          12            CHMN. CHENAL:  Any other appearances?



          13            (No response.)



          14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  This is the hearing for



          15   the Biscuit Flat Relocation Project.  I have a checklist



          16   of things we normally cover.  And I will go through this



          17   quickly.  I think we have met so many times on this case



          18   we have a pretty good handle on it, so I am not



          19   expecting we will -- even with the technical issues,



          20   that there will be any surprises today.



          21            I just want to confirm with counsel that lodging



          22   for Committee members, for out-of-town members, or even



          23   people that are in the Phoenix area that might want to



          24   stay, that that's been arranged.



          25            Mr. Derstine?
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           1            MR. DERSTINE:  Am I still getting the static?



           2   Yeah.



           3            Linda, why don't you go ahead and respond.



           4            MS. BENALLY:  Yes, hotel accommodations have



           5   been arranged and it has been communicated to --



           6            (Audio difficulties.)



           7            (An off-the-record discussion ensued.)



           8            MR. SPITZKOFF:  If I may, the static broke up



           9   last time, Mr. Chairman -- I think when you go on mute,



          10   the audio works a lot better, just like that.



          11            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  I am on.  Now I am live,



          12   and then I turn it on mute.



          13            MR. SPITZKOFF:  Yes, that works.



          14            MS. BENALLY:  Let's test your audio.



          15            CHMN. CHENAL:  I have it on live.  Now I am



          16   going to mute.



          17            Which is better?



          18            MR. DERSTINE:  Test, test, test.



          19            Better, Colette?



          20            THE REPORTER:  Yes.



          21            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Next issue, any notices to



          22   intervene or motions to intervene or interests to



          23   intervene by any party?



          24            Now, Colette --



          25            MR. DERSTINE:  No intervenors, no, no
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           1   intervenors.  We haven't received any indication or even



           2   expressions of any real interest in the project.  I mean



           3   obviously we do have some public comment but nothing



           4   that rises to the level of intervention.



           5            CHMN. CHENAL:  And has the notice to affected



           6   jurisdictions been sent?



           7            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.



           8            CHMN. CHENAL:  And who are they?  Just for the



           9   record, who are the affected --



          10            MR. DERSTINE:  ASLD, City of Phoenix, and



          11   Maricopa County.



          12            CHMN. CHENAL:  Publishing requirements that we



          13   discussed in earlier meetings and in the procedural



          14   order.



          15            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes, publication has been done.



          16   I think Mr. Duncan can, if you want the exact dates in



          17   which the notice has been published, we can provide you



          18   with that, but we did have it published as required and



          19   satisfied the timing requirements.



          20            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  I don't think we need



          21   that.  You will have testimony at the hearing on that.



          22            Any, any concerns about the agenda that I filed



          23   with the Corporation Commission?



          24            MR. DERSTINE:  No.



          25            CHMN. CHENAL:  Leading questions.
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           1            Okay.  The hearing itself, we start next week,



           2   Monday, at 1:30.  What is the -- and, I am sorry, I



           3   don't have the document in front of me with the Notice



           4   of Hearing, so if you could, just summarize where the



           5   hearing is going to take place and how long you believe



           6   the hearing will take and what arrangements have been



           7   made for appearance by Zoom or other means for people



           8   that want to attend, Mr. Derstine.



           9            MR. DERSTINE:  The hearing will be held at the



          10   Briarwood Country Club.  I can give you the address if



          11   you would like it if I pull it up here.



          12            But while I am looking for that, we have Peak



          13   Audio; the same contractor who handled the last two



          14   cases before the Committee will be doing the in-room



          15   hearing presentation as well as be handling all the



          16   virtual appearances for the members of the Committee who



          17   intend to appear virtually, will also do the same



          18   coordination for public comment with links for the



          19   public comment to occur virtually as well.  So I think



          20   we are in good shape there.



          21            MS. BENALLY:  The address for the Briarwood



          22   Country Club is 20800 North 135th Avenue in Sun City,



          23   Arizona.



          24            CHMN. CHENAL:  I like doing these hearings



          25   better at my home when we had the Zoom meetings than
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           1   back at the office.  It is just, it was just a lot



           2   easier.  So I apologize for these technical snafus.



           3            All right.  We are not going to have a tour, so



           4   I assume there is going to be a flyover, a Google or



           5   some sort of flyover for the Committee to see?



           6            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  The folks at AECOM



           7   presented a virtual flyover.



           8            I think, as you know, Mr. Chairman, the project



           9   involves relocating a roughly three and a half mile



          10   segment of the existing 500/230 kV line.  So the virtual



          11   flyover will present the existing line as it sits out



          12   there today.  And then there is a -- we will start back



          13   at the beginning and do a simulation which shows where



          14   we propose to have the line relocated to, as well as the



          15   placement of the expanded Avery substation, as well as



          16   the new substation site for the TS22 substation.



          17            CHMN. CHENAL:  Very good.



          18            As we usually do, we will expect there to be



          19   sign-in sheets for anyone who shows up for public



          20   comment so we have their contact information.



          21            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  We will be able to take



          22   addresses for the members of the public who appear



          23   virtually, get their contact information, as well as



          24   anyone who appears personally at the hearing location.



          25            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Good.  Thank you very
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           1   much.



           2            Any issues about the hearing itself?  Any



           3   logistical issues or concerns that you are aware of at



           4   this time we should discuss?



           5            MR. DERSTINE:  I don't think any logistical



           6   concerns.



           7            The one thing we want to alert you to is we will



           8   present witnesses as a panel.  I think you may have seen



           9   our filing.  It has the witness summaries for the APS



          10   witnesses.  We will be presenting them as a panel.



          11            That filing also included our proposed



          12   recommended opinion and order that we are going to file



          13   a revised or updated version have that.  And I know you



          14   may want to make some proposed changes to that before we



          15   screen it to the Committee.  But we have some changes



          16   more as to form than substance to that ROO, so we will



          17   mark another version.



          18            The only thing, other thing to alert you to is,



          19   as indicated in our witness summaries, there will be a



          20   representative of TSMC who will talk about their



          21   project, give some background on the company.  We just



          22   thought it would be of interest and value for the



          23   Committee to learn more about the TSMC and the plant



          24   that's going in out there, as well as the important



          25   aspects, that is the sensitivity of their manufacturing
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           1   operations to the electromagnetic interference from the



           2   existing line that needs to be relocated, as well as



           3   their energy needs and the demands that justify the



           4   project.  So there will be a TSMC witness.



           5            I think we will present their, allow them to



           6   present their testimony early on.  I think he also has a



           7   video he would like to share with the Committee.  So I



           8   think, with your permission, they would present their



           9   video and present their statement, be available for



          10   questions from the Committee, and then we would move



          11   forward with the APS case in chief.



          12            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman.



          13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Ms. Benally.



          14            I am being turned off on mute.  And I don't have



          15   the mute button, so bear with me.



          16            But, yes, Ms. Benally.



          17            MS. BENALLY:  I would just like to clarify a



          18   statement that Mr. Derstine made.  And I make this



          19   without chatting with him, so I am happy to do what he



          20   suggested as well because that's what we had discussed



          21   earlier.



          22            Basically this is regarding the amended ROO that



          23   Mr. Derstine mentioned.  My plan was to file that as a



          24   replacement to the existing exhibit so we don't change



          25   the sequencing of exhibit numbers.  So when we file it
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           1   in Docket, the plan was to note that it is replacing a



           2   previously filed exhibit, if that's acceptable to you.



           3            CHMN. CHENAL:  I am sorry.  I think that's a



           4   Docket question.  I don't know that you can simply



           5   replace something with something else, because both



           6   items will be there.  It might be easier just to give it



           7   a new exhibit name, a number I mean, and -- because I



           8   think it is going to be a little confusing, where it



           9   has, the document has already been filed and given a,



          10   you know, exhibit number.  You can't replace it; it is



          11   there.  So I think we just give it a new number.  And



          12   that will be okay.  That happens all the time in



          13   hearings.



          14            MS. BENALLY:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I will



          15   proceed accordingly.



          16            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  How far is the hotel



          17   from the hearing?



          18            MR. DERSTINE:  Kevin.



          19            MR. DUNCAN:  I will be able to figure that out.



          20   I actually haven't measured it.  Give me just a moment.



          21            MR. TURNER:  It is roughly less than two miles.



          22            But please measure it, Kevin.



          23            MR. DERSTINE:  Roughly two miles is probably



          24   good enough.



          25            CHMN. CHENAL:  I am being muted.  So let me
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           1   repeat what I said.  I said just a couple miles is good



           2   enough.  I don't need an exact measurement.  I was just



           3   curious how long it is estimated to take to drive from



           4   the hotel to the hearing site.  So it is a few minutes.



           5            Okay.  The exhibits, well, they haven't really



           6   been exchanged because there are no other parties, but



           7   the witness summaries have been filed.



           8            Are there any legal issues we need to discuss



           9   regarding the hearing?  I am not aware of any but I



          10   thought I would ask.  It is on my checklist.



          11            MR. DERSTINE:  I don't think there are any



          12   issues.



          13            CHMN. CHENAL:  Has the applicant met with the



          14   Corporation Commission on the financial arrangements to



          15   cover the -- to agree to cover the cost of the hearing



          16   for the Committee members and the costs associated with



          17   the hearing?



          18            MR. DERSTINE:  We haven't had a personal



          19   meeting, but we paid the filing fee and have given



          20   assurances that we will cover additional costs.



          21            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  That's good.



          22            The ROO we talked about just generally, the



          23   recommended order.  I have not had a chance to review



          24   that, but I will, and I suspect will do in this case as



          25   we have done in other cases.  With this situation, we
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           1   will, we will start with the ROO that you submit, with



           2   any changes we might want to have considered by the



           3   Committee, and then we will review it on a screen when



           4   we begin deliberations and have the static version and



           5   then the version that kind of includes any



           6   modifications.



           7            And are there any questions about that?  It is



           8   what we standard -- standard process.



           9            I am seeing a shake of the head from



          10   Mr. Derstine.  Doesn't look like there are any issues



          11   with that.



          12            MR. DERSTINE:  No.  The biggest preview -- to



          13   preview, the biggest issue in the ROO is carving out



          14   language in CEC 131, which defined the original



          15   corridor, and then replacing that with new language that



          16   defines the new corridor that we are requesting from the



          17   Committee for the amendment to 131.  So the focus will



          18   be on that.



          19            That's really -- unlike, you know, so many of



          20   the other conditions and other issues that were



          21   presented in the Southline case, which came to the



          22   Committee in a similar posture, that it was an amendment



          23   of an existing CEC, in this one it is replacing the



          24   original described corridor with the new corridor to



          25   allow us to relocate the affected line segment a
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           1   distance away from the TSMC plant site.



           2            And then we are -- I think once you take a look



           3   at the ROO, you will see that we have incorporated the



           4   conditions from your last case, I think it is 189, with



           5   a few minor exceptions where we didn't deem those



           6   conditions to be appropriate or modified the language --



           7   I think the only condition we modified was the cathodic



           8   protection, which we go back and forth with the



           9   Committee on with measurements and studies -- and we



          10   have held to the language in 188 as opposed to language



          11   that you had in 189.  So that's about it.



          12            CHMN. CHENAL:  Well, we will have a lively



          13   discussion about that then, see what the Committee -- if



          14   we can land on some language there.



          15            I believe it was the Corporation Commission



          16   Staff that requested that change.  And I can't remember



          17   if they asked for measures versus studies, but that's my



          18   recollection.  But we can look at that and make a



          19   decision.



          20            Will there be electric, electronic, you know,



          21   tablets or iPads with the documents and exhibits loaded



          22   and summaries loaded, Mr. Derstine?



          23            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  And then -- I am sorry.  We



          24   will coordinate with Tod and make sure that we get in



          25   advance of the start of the hearing, which will be here
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           1   in a matter of days, the electronic version of all of



           2   our exhibits so they can then share those with the



           3   members of the Committee who are appearing virtually.



           4            And if you know, Tod may know at this point, but



           5   if you don't that's fine, too, but it is helpful for us



           6   in terms of setting up the room to know how many, how



           7   many Committee members may be in attendance in person



           8   and how many would be appearing virtually.



           9            CHMN. CHENAL:  Tod.



          10            MR. BREWER:  As of right now there is only one



          11   listed appearing virtually.



          12            CHMN. CHENAL:  And the others are -- well, the



          13   full Committee?



          14            MR. BREWER:  Yes, sir.



          15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Nine in attendance and one by



          16   Zoom --



          17            MR. BREWER:  Correct.



          18            CHMN. CHENAL:  -- correct?



          19            I believe that's it.  I mean we have met on this



          20   so many times I think we have a good understanding of



          21   the project.  And certainly chips, the lack of chips are



          22   in the news.



          23            How many -- how long do you think this hearing



          24   will take, Mr. Derstine?



          25            MR. DERSTINE:  I think we would anticipate being
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           1   done, half day Monday, all day Tuesday, early Wednesday,



           2   and so we may be left with, you know, do we finish on



           3   Wednesday, is it early enough to finish on Wednesday or



           4   do we push it to Thursday.  And we understand the



           5   reasons for not wanting to do the hard work, the



           6   detailed work at the end of the day.  So we will just



           7   see how it goes.



           8            I think with the presentation by TSMC, that will



           9   extend, you know, some of our case a bit.  We tried to,



          10   you know, present the issues in an efficient way to the



          11   Committee.  But I can see it getting us even into



          12   Thursday morning or finishing up Wednesday afternoon,



          13   would be my best estimate.



          14            CHMN. CHENAL:  Including the deliberations,



          15   finishing up Wednesday afternoon or Thursday morning, or



          16   the case, the presentation of the case, Mr. Derstine?



          17            MR. DERSTINE:  I think that's inclusive of the



          18   deliberations.



          19            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  Okay.  All right.  I don't



          20   think -- I don't have anything else.  We are looking



          21   forward to this hearing.  We have a full Committee.  I



          22   think that shows the level of interest in it.  It is not



          23   like they come or not depending on what the hearing is



          24   about, but we have a full hearing and most people are



          25   appearing in person versus by Zoom.  So I think there is
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           1   a real interest in this project.



           2            And, I mean, it is international news, this



           3   plant.  So it is, you know, being built in Phoenix



           4   because of the shortages, so it is interesting.  Do you



           5   anticipate any news coverage of the hearing, I mean,



           6   reporters, things like that?



           7            MR. DERSTINE:  That's a good question.  I don't



           8   know.  I haven't heard anything to that effect.



           9            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.



          10            MS. BENALLY:  Pardon me, Mr. Chairman.



          11            Mr. Derstine, do we have additional information



          12   on TS22 that we want to provide?



          13            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah, that's a good point.



          14            We, Mr. Chairman, we had a discussion this



          15   morning.  I think as you may know from looking at the



          16   project maps that we have shown in our prior conferences



          17   with you, all of this land where the project is being



          18   relocated and the substation facilities are being placed



          19   is State Land.  So obviously they have and will



          20   determine the -- well, have strong input in terms of



          21   where we locate our substation, the TS22 substation, as



          22   well as need to approve the -- give us right-of-way for



          23   the relocated line.



          24            Those ongoing discussions, I think, have



          25   progressed to the point where State Land has provided us
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           1   with, just as of this morning or yesterday afternoon,



           2   input on where they would like the TS22 substation to be



           3   located.  That, the location, strays a bit out of the



           4   area that we had previously defined in a map.  But they,



           5   ASLD, would like it to follow a parcel line that is not



           6   regular in shape, and, therefore, our rectangular box



           7   didn't fully capture the area that State Land would



           8   prefer that we place the new TS22 substation.  So we are



           9   preparing maps that show that.



          10            I don't think -- I think the majority of the,



          11   even the new substation site as indicated by ASLD is



          12   still within our original siting area.  As I indicated,



          13   it strays out for a portion.  It is kind of an irregular



          14   triangular shape to the north and there is a small



          15   little bit to the south of the large rectangle that we



          16   had identified as the future TS22 substation site.  And



          17   the substation site, that larger block, was a much



          18   larger acreage within which we were going to place the



          19   TS22 substation to give us the flexibility for siting.



          20            So with that new information from State Land, we



          21   are preparing a revised map.  But, again, in all of this



          22   land is owned by State Land, and I don't think their



          23   expression or what they have given us in terms of their



          24   preference for the TS22 substation location changes



          25   dramatically where we had placed the TS22 substation
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           1   site in our maps and our prior communications with the



           2   public.



           3            So that's the only real development there.  And



           4   we will have new maps that show that ASLD preference for



           5   the location for TS22.



           6            CHMN. CHENAL:  Thank you for that.



           7            Does the -- is the substation site within the



           8   study area as set forth in the application?



           9            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.



          10            CHMN. CHENAL:  And so any environmental studies



          11   included the area where the substation is going to be



          12   located, even though it is going to be a modified



          13   location from what was -- we discussed previously?



          14            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.



          15            CHMN. CHENAL:  Okay.  That's the only legal



          16   concern I would have, is that this is a modification for



          17   an area that was not included within the application or



          18   the maps and the study areas and the environmental



          19   studies.  But if it is, you know, I think that's fine.



          20            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  It is well within, well



          21   within the study area, yeah, in the middle of the study



          22   area.



          23            CHMN. CHENAL:  And any of the environmental



          24   studies would have included the area where the



          25   substation is supposed -- will now be located, is that
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           1   correct, Mr. Derstine?



           2            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  Mr. Turner will testify --



           3   I will wait for you to mute --



           4            (Audio difficulties.)



           5            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes, the new location, or the



           6   expanded area provided by State Land is within the heart



           7   of our study area.  And Mr. Turner from AECOM will



           8   testify that the environmental study work and analysis



           9   performed for the TS22 substation site also covers this



          10   expanded area provided by State Land.  So we are fine



          11   there.



          12            The one discussion we did have is we think it



          13   makes sense to prepare some, maybe one additional visual



          14   simulation just so that the Committee has a better



          15   understanding of the visual impacts of this, of the TS22



          16   substation in this new location.  Again, it is



          17   preliminary.  It is possible that it could change, but I



          18   think it is important that we cover it before the



          19   Committee so that, if it is placed there, that we are



          20   fully authorized to do that.  But we will have all the



          21   information to the Committee so they can assess and



          22   understand what sort of impacts the modified location



          23   for TS22 has.  But we don't see any significant changes



          24   in terms of the environmental impacts or visual impacts.



          25            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Let me say all right
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           1   again because I was talking without being muted and -- I



           2   was still muted.



           3            All right.  I think that covered everything on



           4   my agenda on my checklist.  Business casual for



           5   clothing.  It goes without saying, but I will say it.



           6            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, can I confirm one



           7   issue?



           8            CHMN. CHENAL:  Absolutely.



           9            MR. DERSTINE:  So our plan currently is to have



          10   lunch for the Committee on day one, where the hearing



          11   will start at 1:00.  So we will have lunch available at



          12   the Briarwood location, and then breakfast and lunch



          13   each successive hearing day, as well as the refreshments



          14   at the break times, morning break, afternoon break.



          15            I know when we were in Kingman there was some



          16   concern, Committee members had traveled some distance



          17   and showed up that morning wanting to have breakfast.



          18   Is there any desire to have breakfast on day one?



          19            CHMN. CHENAL:  I suspect the people that are



          20   coming from out of town will come the night before.  So



          21   that's probably a good, a good idea.  I don't know how



          22   many people will show up for breakfast but there will



          23   probably be a few.  Most of the people from out of town



          24   I suspect will be driving in.  That would be very



          25   thoughtful.
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           1            MR. DERSTINE:  Okay.  We will make sure that



           2   happens.



           3            CHMN. CHENAL:  All right.  Thank you.



           4            Anything else, Mr. Derstine, Ms. Benally?



           5            Again, I am sorry this is a little -- we will



           6   get this corrected.  Just getting back into the office,



           7   you get used to working at home and we are now back in



           8   full time, and it is taking a little bit of getting used



           9   to, different computer systems and programs.  It is not



          10   automatic like it was.



          11            But I look forward to seeing everyone Monday.



          12   And if anything comes up between now and then we need to



          13   discuss, let me know.  Otherwise, we will adjourn and we



          14   will see you on Monday.



          15            Thank you, everyone.



          16            MR. DERSTINE:  Thank you.



          17            (The proceeding concluded at 2:41 p.m.)
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